
 
 

 

 
Meeting of:   

 
Cabinet 

Date: Tuesday, 27th April, 2021 
Time: 5.00 pm. 
Venue: Zoom Meeting 

 
The Local Authorities and Police and Crime Panels (Coronavirus) (Flexibility of Local 
Authority and Police and Crime Panel Meetings) (England and Wales) Regulations 
2020. Under the provisions of these regulations the location where a meeting is held 
can include reference to more than one place including electronic, digital or virtual 
locations such as Internet locations, web addresses or conference call telephone 
numbers. To attend this meeting it can be watched live as a webcast. The recording 
of the webcast will also be available for viewing after the meeting has ended. 
 

Item 
No. 

AGENDA Page No 

1   Apologies   

 To receive any apologies for absence.  

2   Minutes  3 - 21 

 To consider the minutes of the meeting of Cabinet held on 30 March 

2021. 

 

3   Declarations of Interest   

 Members are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary, personal 

or personal and prejudicial interests they may have and the nature of 

those interests relating to items on this agenda and/or indicate if S106 

of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 applies to them.    

 

4   Urgent Items of Business   

 To determine whether there are any additional items of business 

which, by reason of special circumstances, the Chair decides should 

be considered at the meeting as a matter of urgency. 

 

5   Items for Exclusion of Public and Press   

 To determine any items on the agenda, if any, where the public are to  

Public Document Pack



be excluded from the meeting. 

6   Public Health COVID-19 Grant Funding 20/21 & 21/22  22 - 28 

 To consider a report of the Cabinet Member for Healthy Lives / 

\Assistant Director - Commissioning 

 

7   Member Development Programme 2021/22  29 - 34 

 To consider the attached report of the Cabinet Member for Corporate 

Delivery / Monitoring Officer 

 

 

Cabinet Members 
Councillor Daalat Ali Councillor Allen Brett 
Councillor Neil Emmott Councillor Janet Emsley 
Councillor Iftikhar Ahmed Councillor John Blundell 
Councillor Kieran Heakin Councillor Sara Rowbotham 
Councillor Carol Wardle  
 

For more information about this meeting, please contact  
Alison James 
01706 924711/924715 
alison.james@Rochdale.Gov.UK 



CABINET 
 

MINUTES OF MEETING 
Tuesday 30th March 2021 

 
PRESENT: Councillor Brett (Chair); Councillors Daalat Ali, Blundell, 
Neil Emmott, Emsley, Heakin, Rowbotham and Wardle 
 
OFFICERS: Steve Rumbelow (Chief Executive), Mark Widdup (Director of 
Neighbourhoods), John Searle (Director of Economy), Claire Richardson 
(Director of Strategic Commissioning/DASS), Asif Ibrahim (Assistant Director 
–Legal Governance and Workforce/Monitoring Officer), Julie Murphy (Chief 
Finance Officer/ Section 151 Officer), Mark Robinson (Assistant Director – 
Economy, Planning and Development), Steve Kay (Assistant Director – 
Children’s Services, Early Help and Schools), Sohida Banu, Louise Egan, 
Chris Highton, Peter Maynard, Helen Walton and Caroline Wolfenden 
(Neighbourhoods Directorate), Peter Gregory (Economy Directorate) and 
Alison James (Resources Directorate)  
 
ALSO IN ATTENDANCE: One member of the public 
 

116 APOLOGIES 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Iftikhar Ahmed 
 

117 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
In accordance with the Code of Conduct for Councillors and Voting Co-Opted 
Members, declarations of interest were made as follows: 
 
Councillor Blundell declared a personal interest in respect of Agenda Item 15 
– New Secondary School Littleborough Site. 
 

118 URGENT ITEMS OF BUSINESS 
The Chair indicated that he had accepted a late item onto the Agenda, Digital 
Experience Strategy – to be considered as Agenda Item 16a. 
 

119 ITEMS FOR EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS 
Cabinet were informed that there had been representations from the 
Littleborough Civic Trust that Agenda Item 22 – Land in Littleborough Village 
should be heard in public as the Trust is of the opinion that it would be in the 
public interest to disclose details of the location and intended use of the land 
in question. 
 
The response from the Council was that the item had been restricted as it was 
likely to contain information relating to the financial or business affairs of both 
the authority and/or individuals. Furthermore, to be able to make an informed 
decision the confidential information would be required to be considered by 
Cabinet and could therefore not be left out of the report. 
 
Cabinet were requested to determine whether the Item should be considered 
on the public or private Agenda. 

Page 3

Agenda Item 2



 
Resolved: 

1. That Agenda Item 22 – Land in Littleborough Village be considered on 
the Private Agenda.  

 
120 MINUTES 

Resolved: 
1.  That the Minutes of the Meeting of Cabinet held on 25th February 2021  

be approved and signed as a correct record. 
 

121 FINANCE UPDATE REPORT P10 
Consideration was given to a report of the Cabinet Member for Corporate 
Delivery / Chief Finance Officer which advised Cabinet of the Council’s 
forecast 2020/21 financial position as at the end of January 2021. 
 
Alternatives considered: 
Not reporting on financial performance puts at risk the achievement of the 
Council’s Medium Term Financial Plan. Effective budget management is 
critical to ensuring financial resources are spent in line with the budget and 
are targeted towards the Council’s priorities. Monitoring enables the early 
identification of variations against the plan and facilitates timely corrective 
action. 
 
Resolved: 
 

1. That the forecast 2020/21 financial positions for Revenue, DSG,  
Capital, and the Collection Fund as at the end of January 2021, as 
detailed in section 4 of the report be noted; 

2. That the forecast Health & Social Care Pool Budget position as detailed  
in section 4.2. of the report be noted; 

3. That the Budget Pressure requests detailed in section 4.3 of the report 
be approved and that Cabinet note that any increased budget 
requirement in relation to the annual review of insurance provision will 
be funded from Public Contingency; 

4. That the transfer of £7,451k of Covid 19 funding into 2 earmarked  
reserves, for use in 2021/22, and the transfer of £500k to the 
Development Fund Reserve as detailed in section 4.1.4.of the report be 
noted; 

5. That the payment of Link4Life’s Management Fee across the first 4 
months of 2021/22 to support Link4Life to mitigate the financial impact 
of the Covid pandemic as detailed in section 4.1.4 of the report be 
approved; 

6. That it be noted that, after accounting for agreed budget carry forwards 
any remaining in-year savings will be transferred to the Equalisation 
Reserve; 

7. That the forecast unachieved Savings target in section 4.4.of the report 
be noted; 

8. That the net Capital budget changes of £687k for 2020/21 and 
£3.000m in 2021/22 as detailed in section 4.6.1. of the report ne noted; 

Page 4



9. That the Capital re-phasing of £7,568k detailed in section 4.6.3. of the 
report be noted; 

10. That the use of the £170k compensation payment received relating to 
Middleton Arena be approved to be used to fund related Legal costs 
with the remaining balance used to replenish the Asset Management 
Capital Scheme for costs already incurred as detailed in 4.6.2.of the 
report. 

 
Reasons for the decision: 
Cabinet Members should be kept updated on the financial position of the 
authority, as effective budget management is critical to ensuring financial 
resources are spent in line with the budget and are targeted towards the 
Council’s priorities. 
 
The report focuses on the forecast 2020/21 financial position as at the end  
January 2021. 
Eligible for call in – no  

 
122 THE FORMATION OF A COMMUNITY RAIL PARTNERSHIP FOR THE 

CALDER VALLEY LINE 
Consideration was given to the report of the Cabinet Member for a Thriving 
Economy/Director of Economy which requested approval of the formation of a 
Community Rail Partnership (CRP) for the Calder Valley Line, which would 
include all five of the borough’s railway stations along with seven railway 
stations in Calderdale. 
 
Cabinet were advised that further to the report, that funding for the proposed 
post to support the CRP would be from a combination of revenue and capital 
funding. 
 
Alternatives considered: 
The alternatives considered were: 
 
Calderdale Council acts as the accountable body for the CRP instead of  
Rochdale Borough Council 
 
This would be very similar to the recommended approach although Rochdale 
Borough Council may have marginally less control in this scenario. 
 
Establishing a CRP using an alternative model to the accountable body 
proposal 
 
It would take much longer to establish a CRP as a company limited under 
guarantee or as a community interest company as these types of 
organisations are required to have their own legal status and so need to 
establish their own accounting, purchasing and employment functions. 
 
Establishing a CRP with Rochdale Borough Council acting as the accountable 
body would enable the partnership to start work sooner, at a time when it is 
needed to help the railway recover after the Coronavirus pandemic. Once the 

Page 5



CRP is operating well, the intention is to assist the partnership to transition to 
a different format which better suits its aims, objectives and planned activities.  
 
Not forming a CRP 
 
This option would mean missing out on an opportunity to harness community 
support for the borough’s railway line. Consultation to date shows there are 
local volunteers who would be willing to give their time to encourage greater 
use of rail services. As the rail industry works to recover from the impact of the 
pandemic, this would benefit residents, businesses, visitors and the rail 
industry. 
 
By not forming a CRP, local organisations would also have less opportunity to 
influence timetabling decisions as one of the main ways in which rail operators 
consult local communities about timetabling changes is via CRPs. 
 
Resolved: 

1. That the formation of a CRP for the Calder Valley Line, in collaboration 
with Calderdale Council be approved; 

2. That Rochdale Borough Council acting as the accountable body for the 
CRP be approved: 

3. That the establishment of a part-time post to support the CRP be 
approved, to be funded from a combination of revenue and capital 
funding as appropriate. 
 

Reasons for the decision: 
It is proposed that the CRP for the Calder Valley Line is established and 
that Rochdale Borough Council acts as the accountable body.  
 
The CRP requires an accountable body for finance and employment 
purposes. 
Eligible for call in - yes 

 
123 ESTABLISHMENT OF A COMMITTEE TO PREPARE A JOINT 

DEVELOPMENT PLAN DOCUMENT ‘PLACES FOR EVERYONE’ 
Consideration was given to the report of the Cabinet Member for a Thriving 
Economy/Director of Economy which advised that on 11th December 2020, 
following the withdrawal of Stockport Council from the production of the 
Greater Manchester Plan for Jobs, Homes & the Environment, the Greater 
Manchester Spatial Framework, the AGMA Executive Board agreed to 
consider producing a joint Development Plan Document (DPD) of the nine 
remaining Greater Manchester (GM) districts, and asked officers to report 
back on the implications of this.  
 
The report provided further details on the next steps in relation to that joint 
plan of the nine GM districts, to be known as “Places for Everyone”, including 
the required decisions by individual Districts to initiate this process.   
 
 
 

Page 6



Alternatives considered: 
As set out in the report, if the appropriate governance arrangements are not is 
place to progress the joint plan ‘Places for Everyone’, then it will not be 
possible to proceed.  Therefore, there are no reasonably practical alternatives 
to the setting up of this new committee and delegating decision to it to enable 
this important plan to progress. 
 
Resolved: 
 

1. It be noted that full Council has approved the making of an agreement 
with the other 8 Greater Manchester councils (Bolton, Bury, 
Manchester, Oldham, Salford, Tameside, Trafford and Wigan) to 
prepare a joint development plan document to cover strategic policies 
including housing and employment land requirements and, as 
appropriate, strategic site allocations and Green Belt boundary 
amendments and associated infrastructure across the nine districts.  

2. That approval be given to delegate to the joint committee of the nine 
Greater Manchester councils the formulation and preparation of the 
joint development plan document to cover housing and employment 
land requirements including, as appropriate, strategic site allocations 
and Green Belt boundary amendments and associated infrastructure 
across the nine Greater Manchester districts insofar as such matters 
are executive functions. 

3. It be noted that the following are the sole responsibility of full Council: 

 Responsibility for giving of instructions to the executive to 
reconsider the draft plan submitted by the executive for the 
authority’s consideration; 

 The amendment of the draft joint development plan document 
submitted by the executive for the full Council’s consideration; 

 The approval of the joint development plan document for the 
purposes of submission to the Secretary of State for independent 
examination; 

 The adoption of the joint development plan document. 
 
Reasons for the decision: 
To ensure that the appropriate governance arrangements are in place to 
support the production of a joint plan of the nine GM districts, to be known as 
“Places for Everyone”.   
Eligible for call in – no  
 
 

124 ROCHDALE TOWN CENTRE PUBLIC SPACE PROTECTION ORDER 
Consideration was given to the report of the Cabinet Member for a Safer and 
Inclusive Community/Director of Neighbourhoods which sought approval to 
the commencement of the process to extend and vary the existing Rochdale 
Town Centre Public Spaces Protection Order (PSPO). 
 
 
 
 

Page 7



Alternatives considered: 
Members could agree to commencing the process to decide whether the 
existing PSPO should be extended, with the restrictions remaining 
unchanged, subject to the necessary consultation, EIA and legal thresholds 
being met; 
 
Members could agree to discharge the PSPO or let the current PSPO lapse 
following the 23 July 2021. 
 
Resolved: 
 

1. That the commencement of the process to extend and vary the 
Rochdale Town Centre Public Spaces Protection Order 2018 be 
approved.  
This will include the following: 

 Ensuring the Council is satisfied that the criteria for an extension 
and a variation has been met; 

 The undertaking of a public consultation;  

 The undertaking of an Equality Impact Assessment (EIA); 

 A further report being submitted to Members to help inform the 
final decision as to approve the extension and variation or not. 

 
Reasons for the decision: 
 
On the 23 July 2018, Rochdale Borough Council introduced the ‘Rochdale 
Town Centre Public Spaces Protection Order 2018’ following a public 
consultation. The Order remains in force for three years subject to any 
variation or extension of the Order.  
 
Subject to a public consultation and the undertaking of an Equality Impact 
Assessment (EIA), it is proposed that the restrictions of the current PSPO will 
be extended for an additional three years and varied.  
 
A further report will be produced for Members following the undertaking of the 
public consultation and full Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) to help inform 
the final decision as to approve the proposed extension and variation, or not. 
Eligible for call in - yes 
 
 

125 THE BOROUGH OF ROCHDALE (35 ROYLE BARN ROAD, ROCHDALE, 
OL11 3DT) COMPULSORY PURCHASE ORDER 2021 
Consideration was given to the report of the Cabinet Member for Quality of 
Place/ Director of Neighbourhoods which sought authorisation to make The 
Borough of Rochdale (35 Royle Barn Road, Rochdale, OL11 3DT) 
Compulsory Purchase Order 2021. 
 
Alternatives considered: 
To continue unsuccessfully to establish the owner of the property – this is not 
considered to be likely to bring the building back into use. 
 

Page 8



To do nothing – this is not acceptable due to the negative amenity impact an 
Empty property in a prominent position within a local centre, particularly since 
the fire damage incidence and security issues of the site. 
 
Resolved: 
 

1. That the making of the Borough of Rochdale (35 Royle Barn Road, 
Rochdale OL11 3DT) Compulsory Purchase Order 2021, utilising 
powers granted under Section 17 Housing Act for the acquisition of 
land for the purpose of providing housing be approved;  

2. That the Assistant Director of Resources (Legal, Governance and 
Workforce), and the Director of Economy be authorised to undertake 
the necessary legal procedures and associated action in relation to the 
Order; 

3. That the Head of Service for Housing in consultation with the Cabinet 
Member for Quality of Place and Chief Finance Officer be authorised to 
proceed with the CPO process once an understanding of the financial 
implications has been determined; 

4. That after considering the implications of the Human Rights Act 1998, 
Cabinet does not consider that there is a breach of the Act if 
compulsory acquisition of the land within the Order as described in the 
submitted report is authorised.  

 
Reasons for the decision: 
 
The Council should only make a CPO if it is satisfied that there is an 
overwhelming case in the public interest. The making of the proposed CPO is 
in the public interest because: 
 

• The proposed intervention is likely to bring the property back into use. 
• The provision of housing will contribute towards meeting housing need 

in the borough. 
• A refurbished property would contribute to meeting housing need, 

improve energy efficiency and reduce fuel poverty, help to reduce 
crime and anti-social behaviour through passive surveillance from the 
new residents, and generally improve the attractiveness and vitality of 
the area. 

 
 
The private property 35 Royle Barn Road, Rochdale OL11 3DT is an 
unoccupied property. 
 
Ownership of the property is uncertain as the title of the property is not 
registered with the land registry and there is a lack of title information and 
verification of ownership and insufficient evidence to pursue this in full. 
 
The property is a source of nuisance to the neighbourhood which is evidenced 
by the number of complaints received by Council and the most recent incident 
which has resulted in significant fire damage to the property, the most 
appropriate course of action to bring this property back into use is Compulsory 

Page 9



Purchase Order (CPO). If acquired, the council intends to redevelop the site to 
bring it back into use as housing subject to a thorough options appraisal. 
 
The view taken is that proceeding by way of a Compulsory Purchase Order in 
the absence of not being able to establish the correct ownership details then 
this is only way to ensure the property is brought back into use. 
Eligible for call in - yes 
 

126 THE BOROUGH OF ROCHDALE (20 OLIVE STREET, HEYWOOD OL10 
4EQ) COMPULSORY PURCHASE ORDER 2021 
Consideration was given to the report of the Cabinet Member for Quality of 
Place/ Director of Neighbourhoods which sought authorisation for the making 
of The Borough of Rochdale (20 Olive Street, Heywood OL10 4EQ) 
Compulsory Purchase Order 2021. 
 
Alternatives considered: 
To continue unsuccessfully to engage with the owner of the property – this is 
not considered to be likely to bring the building back into use. 
 
To do nothing – this is not acceptable due to the negative amenity impact an 
empty property has on the local area. 
 
Resolved: 
 

1. That the making of The Borough of Rochdale (20 Olive Street, 
Heywood OL10 4EQ) Compulsory Purchase Order 2021, utilising 
powers granted under Section 17 Housing Act for the acquisition of 
land for the purpose of providing housing be approved. This power 
includes the acquisition of empty properties where there appears to be 
no other prospect of those empty properties being brought back into 
use; 

2. That the Assistant Director of Resources (Legal, Governance and 
Workforce), and the Director of Economy be authorised to undertake 
the necessary legal procedures and associated action in relation to the 
Order; 

3. That the Head of Service for Housing in consultation with the Cabinet 
Member for Quality of Place and Chief Finance Officer be authorised to 
proceed with the CPO process once an understanding of the financial 
implications has been determined; 

4. That after considering the implications of the Human Rights Act 1998, 
Cabinet does not consider that there is a breach of the Act if 
compulsory acquisition of the land within the Order as described in the 
submitted report is authorised.  

 
Reasons for the decision: 
The Council should only make a CPO if it is satisfied that there is an 
overwhelming case in the public interest. The making of the proposed CPO is 
in the public interest because: 

 
• The proposed intervention is likely to bring the property back into use. 

Page 10



• The provision of housing will contribute towards meeting housing need 
in the borough. 

• A refurbished property would contribute to meeting housing need, 
improve energy efficiency and reduce fuel poverty, help to reduce 
crime and anti-social behaviour through passive surveillance from the 
new residents, and generally improve the attractiveness and vitality of 
the area. 

 
The private property 20 Olive Street, Heywood OL10 4EQ, is an empty 
property which has deteriorated and has fallen into disrepair.  
 
Ownership of the property is uncertain as the title to the property is not 
registered with Land Registry. The Empty Property Team has attempted to 
engage with the person believed to have a beneficial interest in the property 
since 2015 with little progress. 
 
The property by virtue of its dilapidated condition causes significant visual 
harm to the local area. If acquired, the council intends to refurbish the property 
and to bring it back into use as housing. Various options exist for renovation 
and redevelopment, pending a thorough options appraisal. 
 
The view taken is that proceeding by way of a Compulsory Purchase Order is 
a last resort but the only way to ensure the property is brought back into use. 
Officers will continue to keep dialogue open with the beneficial owner in the 
hope of coming to an agreement for the future of the property without the 
need for CPO.  
Eligible for call in - yes  
 

127 THE BOROUGH OF ROCHDALE (THE NAVIGATION INN, DRAKE 
STREET, ROCHDALE, OL16 1PN) COMPULSORY PURCHASE ORDER 
2021 
Consideration was given to the report of the Cabinet Member for Quality of 
Place/ Director of Neighbourhoods which sought authorisation for the making 
of The Borough of Rochdale (The Navigation Inn, Drake Street, Rochdale, 
OL16 1PN) Compulsory Purchase Order 2021. 
 
In considering the submitted report, Cabinet had received a written 
representation from Mr M Percy and verbal representations from Mr S Sadiq 
who was present at the meeting. 
 
Alternatives considered: 
To continue to try to assist the owner to refurbish/redevelop the property – this 
was not considered feasible for the reasons outlined within the report. 
 
Resolved: 
 

1. That the making of the ‘Borough of Rochdale (Former Navigation Inn 
Public House, Drake Street, Rochdale OL16 1PN) Compulsory 
Purchase Order 2021’ utilising powers contained in Section 226, 1(a) of 
the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 be approved; 

Page 11



2. That the Assistant Director of Resources (Legal, Governance and 
Workforce), and the Director of Economy be authorised to undertake 
the necessary legal procedures and associated action in relation to the 
Order; 

3. That the Head of Service for Housing in consultation with the Cabinet 
Member for Quality of Place and Chief Finance Officer be authorised to 
proceed with the CPO process once an understanding of the financial 
implications has been determined; 

4. That after considering the implications of the Human Rights Act 1998, 
Cabinet does not consider that there is a breach of the Act if 
compulsory acquisition of the land within the Order as described in the 
submitted report is authorised.  

 
Reasons for the decision: 
The Council should only make a CPO if it is satisfied that it is a last resort and 
there is a compelling case in the public interest. The making of the proposed 
CPO is in the public interest because: 
 

 The proposed intervention is likely to bring the property back into use; 

 The provision of housing will contribute towards meeting housing need 
in the borough on a brownfield site; 

 A refurbished property would contribute to meeting housing need, 
improve energy efficiency and reduce fuel poverty, help to reduce 
crime and anti-social behaviour through passive surveillance from the 
new residents, and generally improve the attractiveness and vitality of a 
main road into the town centre.  

 
 
The former Navigation Inn public house on Drake Street, Rochdale, is an 
empty property which has been empty since 2009 and is showing signs of 
neglect and extensive deterioration.  
 
The building is located on a main frontage opposite Central Retail Park and 
near Wet Rake Gardens, highly visible to anybody walking from Rochdale 
Railway station to the town centre down Drake Street, and its long term 
vacancy has a negative effect on the reputation of the town centre and the 
borough. 
 
The property by virtue of its poor and neglected condition causes significant 
visual harm to the local area. There have been reported incidents of 
unauthorised entry into the building. If acquired, the Council intends to 
redevelop the site to bring it back into use as housing. Various options exist 
for renovation or demolition and redevelopment, pending a thorough options 
appraisal. 
 
Given the long-term dereliction of the building and the lack of progress on the 
part of the owner to bring the site back into productive use, a Compulsory 
Purchase Order is considered to be a last resort and the only mechanism 
available to the Council to facilitate development of the site. 
Eligible for call in - yes 

Page 12



 
 

128 THE BOROUGH OF ROCHDALE (255 ROOLEY MOOR ROAD, 
ROCHDALE OL12 7EA) COMPULSORY PURCHASE ORDER 2021 
Consideration was given to the report of the Cabinet Member for Quality of 
Place/ Director of Neighbourhoods which sought authorisation to make The 
Borough of Rochdale (255 Rooley Moor Road, Rochdale OL12 7EA) 
Compulsory Purchase Order 2021. 
 
In considering the submitted report, Cabinet had received a written 
representation from Mr N Doggett. 
 
Alternatives considered: 
To continue unsuccessfully to try to engage with the beneficial owners of the 
property – this is not considered to be likely to bring the building back into use. 
 
To do nothing – this is not acceptable due to the negative amenity impact an 
empty property in a prominent position, particularly since the fire damage 
incidence and security issues of the site. 
 
Resolved: 
 

1. That the making of the Borough of Rochdale (255 Rooley Moor Road, 
Rochdale OL12 7EA) Compulsory Purchase Order 2021 utilising 
powers granted within Sections 226, 1(a) of the Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990 be approved; 

2. That the Assistant Director of Resources (Legal, Governance and 
Workforce), and the Director of Economy be authorised to undertake 
the necessary legal procedures and associated action in relation to the 
Order; 

3. That the Head of Service for Housing in consultation with the Cabinet 
Member for Quality of Place and Chief Finance Officer be authorised to 
proceed with the CPO process once an understanding of the financial 
implications has been determined; 

4. That after considering the implications of the Human Rights Act 1998, 
Cabinet does not consider that there is a breach of the Act if 
compulsory acquisition of the land within the Order as described in the 
submitted report is authorised.  
 

Reasons for the decision: 
The Council should only make a CPO if it is satisfied that there is an 
overwhelming case in the public interest. The making of the proposed 
CPO is in the public interest because: 
 

 The proposed intervention is likely to bring the property back into 
use. 

 The provision of housing will contribute towards meeting housing 
need in the borough. 

 A refurbished property would contribute to meeting housing need, 
improve energy efficiency and reduce fuel poverty, help to reduce 

Page 13



crime and anti-social behaviour through passive surveillance from 
the new residents, and generally improve the attractiveness and 
vitality of the area. 

The private property 255 Rooley Moor Road, Rochdale, OL12 7EA, is an 
empty property which has suffered significant fire damage and has fallen into 
disrepair.  
 
The property by virtue of its dilapidated condition causes significant visual 
harm to the local area. If acquired, the Council intends to bring it back into use 
as housing including looking at options for renovation or demolition and 
redevelopment, pending a thorough options appraisal. 
 
The view taken is that proceeding by way of a Compulsory Purchase Order is 
the only way to ensure the property is brought back into use. Officers will 
continue to keep dialogue open with the beneficial owners in the hope of 
coming to an agreement for the future of the property without having to use 
CPO powers. 
Eligible for call in - yes 
 

129 THE BOROUGH OF ROCHDALE (3 CROFT STREET ROCHDALE OL12 
9AD) COMPULSORY PURCHASE ORDER 2021 
Consideration was given to the report of the Cabinet Member for Quality of 
Place/ Director of Neighbourhoods which sought authorisation to make The 
Borough of Rochdale (3 Croft Street Rochdale OL12 9AD) Compulsory 
Purchase Order 2021. 
 
Alternatives considered: 
To continue unsuccessfully to attempt to establish ownership of the property – 
this is not considered to be likely to bring the building back into use. 
 
To do nothing – this is not acceptable due to the negative amenity impact an 
empty property has on the local area. 
 
Resolved: 
 

1. That the making of the Borough of Rochdale (3 Croft Street, Rochdale 
OL12 9AD) Compulsory Purchase Order 2021 utilising powers granted 
under Section 17 Housing Act for the acquisition of land for the purpose 
of providing housing be approved. This power includes the acquisition 
of empty properties where there appears to be no other prospect of 
those empty properties being brought back into use; 

2. That the Assistant Director of Resources (Legal, Governance and 
Workforce), and the Director of Economy be authorised to undertake 
the necessary legal procedures and associated action in relation to the 
Order; 

3. That the Head of Service for Housing in consultation with the Cabinet 
Member for Quality of Place and Chief Finance Officer be authorised to 
proceed with the CPO process once an understanding of the financial 
implications has been determined; 

Page 14



4. That after considering the implications of the Human Rights Act 1998, 
Cabinet does not consider that there is a breach of the Act if 
compulsory acquisition of the land within the Order as described in the 
submitted report is authorised.  

 
Reasons for the decision: 
The Council should only make a CPO if it is satisfied that there is an 
overwhelming case in the public interest. The making of the proposed CPO is 
in the public interest because: 
 

• The proposed intervention is likely to bring the property back into use. 
• The provision of housing will contribute towards meeting housing need 

in the borough. 
• A refurbished property would contribute to meeting housing need, 

improve energy efficiency and reduce fuel poverty, help to reduce 
crime and anti-social behaviour through passive surveillance from the 
new residents, and generally improve the attractiveness and vitality of 
the area. 

 
The private property 3 Croft Street, Rochdale OL12 9AD, is an empty property 
which has deteriorated and has fallen into disrepair.  
 
Ownership of the property is uncertain as title to the property is not registered 
with Land Registry. The Empty Property Team has attempted to establish 
ownership of the property but, despite attempts to engage with the Solicitors 
acting for the Duchy of Lancaster, no progress has been made.  
 
The deteriorating condition of the property causes significant visual harm to 
the local area. If acquired, the council intends to refurbish the property to bring 
it back into use as housing. Various options exist for renovation and 
redevelopment, pending a thorough options appraisal. 
 
The view taken is that proceeding by way of a Compulsory Purchase Order in 
the absence of being able to establish ownership of the property is a last 
resort and the only way to ensure the property is refurbished and brought 
back into use. 
Eligible for call in - yes 
 

130 CAPITAL INVESTMENT IN SCHOOLS 2021/2023 
Consideration was given to the report of the Cabinet Member for Getting a 
Good Start/Director of Children’s Services which sought approval for 
proposed expenditure on various schemes in accordance with the Council’s 
Financial Regulations. These regulations provide that Cabinet approval should 
be obtained before new expenditure can be incurred. This report requests 
approval and tender acceptance, where necessary, for the outlined and 
reserve schemes proposed, contingency and other specified budgets. 
Alternatives considered: 
 
Proposals are put forward in line with priorities and commitments approved in 
previous Cabinet reports. Major priorities for the forthcoming year are 

Page 15



additional pupil place planning and a school building condition works 
programme to address the highest priority issues. 
 
Resolved: 

1. That the following future capital allocations be noted: 

 School Condition Allocations £1,808,000 - (indicative figure for 
receipt in each of years 2021/22 and 2022/23);  

 Devolved Formula Capital (DFC) £480,000 - (indicative figure for 
receipt in each of years 2021/22 and 2022/23);  

 Basic Need Allocations £4,749,871 - (DfE confirmed figure for 
2020/21); 

2. That approval be given to the expenditure on the proposed final 
programmes as detailed within the report (Appendix A), for invitations 
to tender to be issued and accepted and for the supporting contracts, 
PFI deeds of variation (where necessary) and any incidental and 
ancillary documentation, to be signed in order to deliver the 
development schemes outlined in the appendices, in accordance with 
Financial Regulations:  

 Basic Need Programme of £22,941,817 as set out in Appendix A;  

 Capital Programme of £3,527,500 as set out in Appendix A; 
 

3. That the Director of Children’s Services be authorised to invite and 
evaluate tenders for the projects described in the report and enter into 
the appropriate contracts and incidental and ancillary documentation in 
consultation with the relevant Portfolio Holder and Assistant Director 
Legal Governance & Workforce, as per the Council Constitution; 

4. That the Council’s Section 151 officer be authorised to allocate and vire 
funding to Children’s Services to support the programme when it is 
received. 

 
Reasons for the decision: 
 
The Authority has received confirmation of allocations for Basic Need for 
2020/21, this is less than in previous years to reflect the DFE’s provision of 
the new Secondary Free Schools, rather than the LA demand on, and 
proposals for, extra school places previously reported to Cabinet on 29th 
September 2020, will be followed by further phases as identified. Repairs to 
the school estate have considered all commitments and urgent demands 
before making recommendations to address the most significant issues, in 
conjunction with continued DFC allocations to schools. 
 
As well as on-going support for the current phases of capital works already 
committed, a new programme of works is proposed to address major 
condition needs based on Asset Management information, recently 
commissioned and prioritised full building condition survey information and 
priority place planning demands in order to ensure that the LA’s statutory 
obligations are satisfied for the provision of school places and continued 
education. The full recommendations for inclusion in this year’s capital 
programme were outlined in Appendix A, including costs estimated by the 
Council’s Property Services Team. 

Page 16



Eligible for call in - yes 
 

131 NEW SECONDARY SCHOOL LITTLEBOROUGH SITE 
Consideration was given to the report of the Cabinet Member for Getting a 
Good Start/Director of Children’s Services which advised that to move forward 
on the delivery of the new Star Academies’ Littleborough Secondary school, 
agreement is needed to dispose of the land at Littleborough Playing Fields.  
 
Any conditions required either before disposal of the land, during the process 
of building the school or after occupation of the school are to be agreed within 
the Heads of Terms agreement and the report sought approval to delegate 
final sign off of the document. 
 
Alternatives considered: 
 
Secondary school places have been under pressure in the north Pennines 
area for several years and it continues to be a challenge to place families in 
their preferred schools in the area. A decision to not dispose of this land for 
the school would mean more children travelling to central Rochdale for their 
Secondary schooling with more families possibly opting to move out of 
borough. 
 
Resolved: 
 

1. That the he disposal of the Littleborough Playing Field site edged red in 
Appendix 1 of the report be approved; 

2. That the provision of a Section 151 letter from the Council to the 
Department for Education to cover the expenditure on offsite highways 
costs up to a maximum of £1,000,000, as required by the Heads of 
Terms agreement, with the understanding that further funding may be 
requested be approved. These costs will be met from school’s Basic 
Need funding.  

3. That the Director of Economy and the Director of Resources, acting 
jointly, be given delegated authority for final sign off of the Heads of 
Terms for the disposal of site; 

4. That the Assistant Director of Resources (Legal, Governance & 
Workforce) be authorised to advise appropriate Council Services, to 
review and prepare the appropriate legal documents and execute such 
documents on behalf of the Council as required. 

 
Reasons for the decision: 
The local authority has a statutory duty to offer every child living in the 
borough, and who applies, a school place. Birth rates have been increasing 
for the last 15 years and secondary schools in Rochdale have reached 
capacity. The area of north Pennines has continued to see increasing new 
housing, and has seen continued and sustained rises in pupil numbers. 
Numbers of pupils are expected to continue to rise until 2027/28.  
 
In June 2019 the government announced north Pennines had received a 
successful bid from the Star Academies trust to open a new Secondary school 

Page 17



in the area. Previously in June 2018, Cabinet had approved Littleborough 
Playing fields as the site for the new school.  
The Star Academies trust have had 14 new schools opened through the 
governments free school programme that have all had “Outstanding” with their 
first Ofsted rating. The Trust is committed to working with all stakeholders in 
the local community and want to deliver a school that continues to uphold its 
reputation for excellence and leadership.  
 
Legal and commercial details related to disposal of the Littleborough Playing 
Fields site are contained in Appendix 3. Because of the complicated nature of 
the site location for the Secondary school, the Department for Education 
requires a commitment from the Council with regards to sharing costs of a 
Planning Authority compliant plan for highways works for access to the site. 
Eligible for call in - yes 
 

132 DIGITAL EXPERIENCE STRATEGY 
Consideration was given to the report of the Cabinet Member for Corporate 
Delivery/Director of Neighbourhoods which presented the digital experience 
strategy for approval. The strategy sets out a clear vision to improve our place 
and people’s lives through digital transformation. It includes clear priorities to 
be a digital place that utilises new technologies and systems and digital 
people which aims to ensure our residents are able to take advantage of 
those new technologies and better their lives. 
 
The report also set out the next steps following approval of the strategy. This 
includes establishing a partnership working group which will be tasked initially 
with developing a delivery plan which will sit behind the strategy and this will 
be brought back to Cabinet for approval later this year. 
 
Alternatives considered: 
 
The draft digital strategy does show that we can already point to 
achievements in all of the thematic areas proposed, therefore an alternative 
could be to continue as we are, without a strategy.  
 
This option has been discounted as it is considered that by setting a clear 
vision, priorities and outcomes that we want to achieve, a strategy will help us 
to better focus our resources and prioritise work in the areas that most need to 
be addressed. In addition it will provide a clear narrative for us to be able to 
engage and collectively work with our partners and communities. 
 
Resolved: 

1. That The Digital Experience Strategy, appended to the report, be 
approved for consultation and as a basis for developing a delivery plan; 

2. That the proposed next steps, which includes establishing a digital 
strategy working group, involving key stakeholders from the Council, 
CCG, wider health, education, VCFSE and business sector in the 
development of a partnership delivery plan to enable us to deliver the 
digital priorities set out in the strategy be approved. 

 

Page 18



Reasons for the decision: 
 
To approve a clear strategy and way forwards for digital transformation across 
the borough, ensuring that our people and places are able to benefit from the 
opportunities that digital technologies and skills create. 
Eligible for call in – no 
 

133 EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC 
Resolved: 
That the Press and Public be excluded from the meeting during consideration 
of the following four items of business, in accordance with the provisions of  
Section 100A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, as amended. 
 
Reason for the Decision: 
Should the press and public remain during the debate on the following items, 
there may be a disclosure of information that is deemed to be exempt under  
Parts 1 and 4 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 
 

134 CAPITAL INVESTMENT IN SCHOOLS 2021/2023 - APPENDIX A 
Resolved: 

1. That Appendix A to the report on the public Agenda – Capital 
Investment in Schools 2021/2023 be noted and approved. 

Eligible for call in – yes  
 

135 NEW SECONDARY SCHOOL LITTLEBOROUGH SITE - APPENDIX 3 
Resolved: 

1. That Appendix 3 to the public report New Secondary School 
Littleborough Site be noted and approved. 

Eligible for call in – yes  
 

136 PUBLIC SECTOR DECARBONISATION SCHEME 
Consideration was given to the report of the Deputy Leader and Cabinet 
Member for Climate Change and Sustainability/Director of Neighbourhoods 
which provided an update on update Cabinet on the grant award to Rochdale 
Borough Council under the Government’s Public Sector Decarbonisation 
Scheme (PSDS) and to seek approval to accept the grant award through the 
Greater Manchester Combined Authority (GMCA) for Salix grant funding 
under the Government’s Public Sector Decarbonisation Scheme (PSDS). 
 
Alternatives considered: 
No alternatives were outlined within the report. 
 
Resolved: 

1. That acceptance of the grant award under the PSDS be approved and 
authorisation be granted for the procurement and delivery of capital 
works as detailed in Appendix 1 of the submitted report; 

2. That the acceptance and approval to spend be delegated to the 
Director of Neighbourhoods and Chief Finance Officer in consultation 
with the Portfolio holder for Corporate Delivery once the formal grant 
funding offer has been received and that the Chief Finance Officer be 

Page 19



authorised to sign the Grant Funding Agreement between Rochdale 
Council and the Greater Manchester Combined Authority; 

3. That the Assistant Director (Legal, Governance and Workforce) be 
authorised to progress and sign any legal agreements necessary to 
enable the delivery of the projects detailed within the submitted report, 
subject to agreement with other key officers as necessary. 

 
Reasons for the decision: 
 
The PSDS programme in Rochdale is likely to lead to significant expenditure 
across the Council. Under the Council’s constitution this is a key decision.  
 
The PSDS programme represents a significant investment in decarbonising 
the public estate and will involve the delivery of a complex and time 
dependent programme of works in order to draw down the PSDS grant 
funding from GMCA. 
Eligible for call in - yes  
 

137 SECURITY CONTRACT 
Consideration was given to the report of the Cabinet Member for Quality of 
Place/Director of Neighbourhoods relating to the extension of contracts for 
security at the specified Council buildings and to the modification of the 
contract to add CCTV as detailed within the submitted report.  
 
Alternatives considered: 
No alternatives had been considered. 
 
Resolved: 

1. That the contract extension for security in the specified Council 
buildings as detailed within the submitted report be approved for a 
further 12 months before re-tendering the contract in 2022 noting that a 
further report will be produced prior to re-tendering and that Star 
Procurement will be fully involved in the tender process. 

2. That approval be given to the inclusion of CCTV within the contract as 
detailed within the report. 

 
Reasons for the decision: 
To facilitate the extension of the security contract in the specified Council 
buildings for 12 months and to modify the contract to include CCTV as 
detailed within the report. 
Eligible for call in - no 
 

138 LAND IN LITTLEBOROUGH VILLAGE 
Consideration was given to the report of the Cabinet Member for a Thriving 
Economy/ Director of Economy seeking approval for the Council to acquire 
land and property in Littleborough Village as shown on the plan appended to 
the submitted report. 
 
 
 

Page 20



Alternatives considered: 
The Council could turn down the opportunity to acquire the interest at this 
point in time. Should the Council adopt this course of action, it will be unable 
to implement any regeneration proposals for this area of the Village, unless it 
follows compulsory acquisition procedures or acquires the land and property 
interests in advance of any proposed CPO. 
 
Resolved: 

1. That the acquisition of the land and property in Littleborough Village on 
the terms set out within the submitted report be approved; 

2. That the Assistant Director, Legal, Governance & Workforce be 
authorised to complete all necessary legal formalities in order to give 
effect to the acquisition of the land and property on the terms set out 
within the submitted report. 

 
Reasons for the decision: 
The Council is unlikely to be able to achieve its regeneration objectives for 
Littleborough Village unless it acquires the property interests in question.  
Eligible for call in – yes  
 
 

Page 21



 

Report to Cabinet 

 

 

Date of Meeting 27th April 2021 
Portfolio Public Health and 

Wellbeing 
Responsible Director Andrea Fallon – Director 

of Public Health 
Report Author Adam Sutcliffe 
Public/Private Document Private 

 
 

Public Health COVID-19 Grant Funding 
 

 

Executive Summary 

 
1.0 
 
 
 
 
1.1 
 
 
1.2 
 
 
 
 
1.3 
 
 
1.4 
 
 
 
 
 
1.5 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Public Health has received additional funding from central government to 
assist with the response to the COVID-19 pandemic.  This funding was 
initially allocated from June 2020 to support the local requirements of Test & 
Trace. 
 
Since October 2020 we have received monthly payments linked to the tiered 
restrictions and lockdown respectively. 
 
The Government announced in the ‘COVID-19 Response – Spring 2021’ 
roadmap an extra £400 million funding for the Contain Outbreak Management 
Fund, to cover further public health activities from 1 April 2021.  The 
Rochdale allocation is £1,995,873 for 21/22. 
 
This paper summarises the funding received and seeks approval for the 
proposed uses for the funding for 20/21 and 21/22. 
 
Some of the allocations within the report have been approved via Chief 
Executive urgency powers given the need to pass funds through to support 
the most vulnerable during the lockdown periods, this report seeks to 
document those decisions in order we are transparent about use of 
resources.  
 
The report covers the following five grants: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 22

Agenda Item 6



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1.6 

 

Grant Value Period 

Test and Trace Service 
Support Grant 

£1,591,757 Jun 20 to Mar 
21 

Contain Outbreak 
Management Fund (COMF) 

£2,492,346 – initial 
allocation 
 

Oct 20 to Mar 
21 

£2,668,944 (£889,648 per 
28 days) 

Dec 20 to Feb 
21 

£1,143,833 – allocation 
covering 36 days 

Mar 21 

£1,995,873 Apr 21 to Mar 
22 

Clinically Extremely 
Vulnerable Grant (CEV) 

£120,450 – November 
£138,563 – December 
£160,694 – February 
£252,082 – March 
 

Nov 20 to Mar 
21 

Lateral Flow Testing Income based on number 
of tests carried out @£14 
per test. 

Jan 21 to Jun 
21 

Self-isolation practical 
support framework funding 

£63,077 – March 
£63,077 – April 
£63,077 – May 
£63,077 – June 
 

Mar 21 to Jun 
21 

 
Monthly grant returns are required in respect of the COMF, CEV and Self-
isolation practical support funding payments. This is overseen by colleagues 
in Public Health and finance with sign off from the Director of Public Health. 
 

 

Recommendation 

 
2.0 
 
 
2.1 
 
 
 
2.2 

That Cabinet approves the proposals for the use of the funding contained 
within this report and the subsequent publication of the decision. 
 
That Cabinet delegates the authority for allocating the ongoing COMF, CEV 
and self-isolation practical support funding to the Director of Public Health in 
consultation with the Cabinet member for Healthy Lives 
 
That Cabinet delegates the signing of any contract variations required as a 
result of administering the allocated funding to commissioned services to the 
Director of Public Health in consultation with the Cabinet member for 
Healthy Lives. 
 
 
 

Page 23



 

Reason for Recommendation 

 
3.0 
 
 
 
 

 

 
The allocation of the funding received has been made in consultation with 
key partners in Rochdale to ensure it meets the needs of the population 
during this period (see page 8 of the COVID outbreak plan embedded in 
section 8 of this report for the reporting structure). The allocations are also in 
line with the conditions of each grant. 

 

Key Points for Consideration 

 
4.0 
 
4.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
4.2 
 
4.3 
 
 
 
4.4 
 
 
 
 
4.5 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Test and Trace Service Support Grant 
 
This grant of £1,591,757 was issued to the local authority in June 2020. 
Allocation of the grant has been in the following categories to support the 
response to the pandemic: 

 

 
Contain Outbreak Management Fund (COMF) 
 
An initial allocation of £2,492,346 was received by the local authority in 
October 2020 to reflect the time the borough has been in enhanced measures 
and Tier 3. 
 
Due to the continued restrictions, the Council has received further COMF 
allocations. These payments commenced from December 2020 and have 
continued to the end of March 2021. The allocation during this time has 
totalled £3,812,777. 
 
The COMF funding has been allocated in the following way: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Test and Trace Service Support Grant Value committed 

Strengthening internal infrastructure for response £404,327 

Testing £438,696 

Contract Tracing £271,758 

Protecting the vulnerable £127,374 

Prevention and Enforcement £342,193 

Contingency £7,409 

Total £1,591,757 

Page 24



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

4.6 
 
 
4.7 
 

4.8 
 
 
 
 
 
4.9 
 
 
 
 
 
4.10 
 
4.11 
 
 
 
4.12 
 
 
 
 

 

 
Some examples of the support offered can be found in the powerpoint 
presentation embedded in section 8 of this report. 
 
COMF funding 2021/2022 
 
On 24th February 2021 Government announced in the ‘COVID-19 Response – 
Spring 2021’ roadmap an extra £400 million funding for the Contain Outbreak 
Management Fund, to cover further public health activities from 1 April 2021.  
The Rochdale allocation is £1,995,873 for 21/22.  It should be noted that this 
figured is significantly less than the funding received during 2020/21. 
 
We are also able to carry over remaining COMF funds from 2020/21 to 
support the delivery of the Outbreak Management plan during 2021/22.  This 
means the remaining COMF to deliver the outbreak management functions 
for 2021/22 is £4,650,028. 
 
 
Clinically Extremely Vulnerable Grant (CEV) 
 
In November 2020, to reflect the borough moving into another lockdown, the 
Council received a grant of £120,450 in November 2020 to be used to support 
Clinically Extremely Vulnerable residents in the borough. 
 
Since then the council has received an additional £551,339 to support the 
CEV residents in the borough. 
 

COMF funding category Value committed from 
20/21 COMF allocation 

Testing  £200,000 

Compliance measures £110,000 

Communication and marketing   £200,000 

Support for the clinically extremely vulnerable  £475,000 

Support for wider vulnerable groups, including 
rough sleepers  £765,475 

Support for those self-isolating  £185,934 

Targeted intervention for specific cohorts within 
the community   £883,726 

Utilisation of local sectors (Academic, volunteers 
etc.) £25,033 

Other (Supporting public health infrastructure) £805,800 

Total committed £3,650,968 

20/21 total COMF funding £6,305,123 

Funding remaining to support implementation of 
21/22 outbreak management plan 

£2,654,155 

Page 25



4.13 
 
 
 
 
4.14 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

4.15 
 
4.16 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.17 
 
 
 

4.18 
 
4.19 
 
 
 
 
 

The allocation of the CEV grant has been developed by Public Health and 
partners. It has been used to support the community response hubs, 
communicate with shielding residents, support residents accessing food and 
supplies provision, as well as access to digital resources. 
 
Shielding advice for vulnerable residents has been officially paused nationally 
with effect from 1st April 2021. This means the Council will not receive any 
further CEV grant funding. As with the COMF grant, we have been able to 
carry forward the remaining CEV funding to support the delivery of the 
outbreak management plan in 2021/22. 
 

 
 
Self-isolation practical support framework funding 
 
At the end of March 2021, the Council received notification from the 
Department of Health and Social Care (DHSC) that we would be receiving 
additional financial support to help those who are required to self-isolate. We 
have been notified that we are to receive £63,077 a month for March, April, 
May and June. The public health team is currently working with partners to 
allocate this funding. As with the other grants will be utilised to deliver the 
outbreak management plan during 2021/22. 
 
As with the CEV grant, a monthly monitoring return is required to be 
submitted to the DHSC and this will be overseen by colleagues in Public 
Health and finance with sign off from the Director of Public Health. 
 
Lateral Flow Testing 
 
Grant support is available to support the costs of Lateral Flow Testing for the 
period form the 18th of January to the end of June 2021.The value of this 
support is matched to the delivery cost up to a maximum of £14 per test 
delivered, however we have received assurance that we will receive funding 
to cover the overall costs if the cost per test is above £14 due to unforeseen 
circumstances, such as the 3rd lockdown and closure of schools. 

Clinically Extremely Vulnerable Grant Allocation Value committed 

Staff costs for community hubs £30,012 

Contacting CEV’s, triaging individual’s needs and 
signposting to available support, 

£16,850 

Engagement with isolated individuals £120,000 

CEV’s directly supported to access food £85,000 

Provision of wellbeing support and digital inclusion £50,000 

Development of digital platform to sustain 
response into 2021/22 

£109,927 

Focused recovery programme at those who have 
been shielding in terms of addressing 
deconditioning and mental wellbeing 

£260,000 

Total committed £671,789 

Total CEV funding received £671,789 

Page 26



 
 
4.20 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.21 
 
 

 
 
Initial LFT funding was allocated for funding up until the 31st of March 2021, 
and a further allocation will be made for costs incurred between April and the 
30th of June 2021. Returns have been submitted to the DHSC for each of 
these periods providing details on costs and activity. 
 
Below are the forecast costs and expected tests to be delivered at each 
stage. 
 

LFT Forecasts 
Estimated 

Cost 
Estimated 

Tests 
Cost per 

Test 

January to March £457,109       37,272  £12.26 

April to June £338,710       38,970  £8.69 

Total £795,819     76,242  £10.44 

 
 
The forecast costs are expected to remain within the £14 per test limit, so this 
should be cost neutral to the LA. 
 
 

Costs and Budget Summary 

 
5.0 Grant Total funding due to 

be received 
Funding Spent/ 
committed 

Amount 
remaining 

Test and Trace 
Service Support 
Grant 

£1,591,757   £1,591,757 £0 

Contain 
Outbreak 
Management 
Fund (COMF) 

£8,300,996 £3,650,968 £4,650,028 

Clinically 
Extremely 
Vulnerable Grant 
(CEV) 

£671,789 £671,789 £0 

Self-isolation 
practical support 
funding 

£252,308 £0 £252,308 

Lateral Flow 
testing 

£795,819 £795,819 £0 

Total funding so 
far 

£11,612,669 £6,710,333 £4,902,336 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 27



 

Risk and Policy Implications 

 
6.0 
 
 
 
 
6.1 
 
 
6.2 

The recommendations within this report will ensure that Council remains 
legally compliant in relation to the allocation of these grants and ensure the 
decisions made are published in line with local authority requirements 
which reduces the risk of legal challenge. 
 
Any provision of funding from these grants to external providers has been 
issued utilising the following Procurement Policy Note: 
 
Procurement Policy Note - Responding to COVID-19  Information Note PPN 
01/20  March 2020 makes provision for the following; 
 
This PPN and associated guidance covers options that may be considered 
in relation to procurements under the Public Contract Regulations 2015 (for 
the current financial thresholds, see PPN 06/19):  

 direct award due to extreme urgency (regulation 32(2)(c); 

 direct award due to absence of competition or protection of exclusive 
rights; 

 call off from an existing framework agreement or dynamic purchasing 
system; 

 call for competition using a standard procedure with accelerated 
timescales; 

 extending or modifying a contract during its term. 
 

Consultation 

 
7.0 
 
 
 
7.1 
 
 
 
7.2 
 
 
7.3 

The allocation of funding of all of the grants contained within this paper as 
approved are in line with the objectives set out in the Council’s COVID-19 
Outbreak Plan (embedded background papers). 
 
Consultation with community leaders and the VCSF is an ongoing process 
managed as part of the governance arrangements for the delivery of the 
Outbreak management plan.  
 
Where applicable, all providers who have received funding have been 
consulted with to ensure they are able to deliver the functions required. 
 
The transfer of funding to providers has been carried out in consultation 
with finance and procurement colleagues to ensure compliance with the 
relevant regulations. 

 

Background Papers Place of Inspection 

 

8.   

For Further Information Contact: Adam Sutcliffe, Head of Commissioning 
(Prevention) 

 

Page 28



 

Title: Member Development Programme 

Date of Meeting(s): 27 April 2021 

Meeting: Recruitment and Selection and Member Development 

Report of: Monitoring Officer 

Cabinet Portfolio Holder: Councillor Wardle (Cabinet Member for Corporate Delivery) 

Public / Private report: Public 

 

1. Report Summary 

1.1 The Council’s current arrangements for Member training are ad-hoc and not 

formalised (for instance there is not an effective programme for new or 

returning Members); a robust and meaningful training programme for 

Councillors, especially new Councillors, will help Members to perform their 

functions and will lessen risk to the authority. 

1.2 A Scrutiny Study Group consisting of the Chairs and Vice-Chairs from the 

three Overview and Scrutiny Study Groups met to consider provision for 

Member development with the following recommendations being made for 

adoption by Cabinet. 

2. Recommendations 

2.1 That the proposed Mandatory Courses listed in Appendix 1 be adopted for 

completion by all Members. 

2.2 That it be noted the Monitoring Officer will report annually on up take of 

Mandatory Courses to the Audit & Governance Committee. 

2.3 That the list of non-Mandatory Courses set out in Appendix 2 be adopted with 

additional courses to be made available upon request from the e-learning 

database. 

2.4 That the Resources Directorate provide quarterly updates to all Members on 

available external training and guidance provided by the Local Government 

Association, North West Employers, The Chartered Institute of Public Finance 

and Accountancy, Centre for Governance and Public Scrutiny and other 

corporately recognised suppliers. 

2.5 That a criteria be developed by Members to determine allocation of the annual 

Councillor training budget. 

3. Reason for Recommendation 

3.1 To provide guidance and support for Members to fulfil their roles ensuring 

they are not at a disadvantage with knowledge and effectiveness. 

 

3.2 Alternatives Considered 

Page 29

Agenda Item 7



To not adopt a Member development programme or amend as required. 

 

4. Key information 

4.1 The purpose of the Member Development programme is to: 

 Create a clear framework for Councillor development based upon 

individual and organisational needs. 

 Ensure all Councillors have the necessary skills at the required level to 

conduct their roles effectively. 

 Ensure Councillors have the skills and knowledge needed to oversee the 

delivery of high quality public services through their community leadership 

roles. 

 Ensure Councillors feel confident to undertake their roles. 

 Ensure Councillors are fully aware of their responsibilities and 

accountabilities to deliver good governance. 

 Support the continued development of Councillors to prepare them for 

roles they may fill in the future. 

 Provide all Councillors with the opportunity for development. 

 

4.2 Mandatory Courses 

The proposed mandatory courses are drawn from statutory and identified high 

risk areas.  All members will be required to undertake the online course within 

the first year following election to the Council.  

 

4.3 Non-Mandatory Courses 

The non-mandatory courses are designed to provide support on specific skill 

sets and topics that Members may want to utilise in support of their roles.  

 

4.4 New Member Induction 

With restrictions in place due to Covid-19 it is proposed that a virtual induction 

be held for new and returning Councillors in May 2021.  A programme of 

events is set out in Appendix 2.  

 

4.5 Local Government Association  

The council is a member of the Local Government Association, with each 

Councillor provided individual access to the large number of resources made 

available by them.  This includes guidance and toolkits aimed at assisting 

councils and councillors in their roles. 

 

4.6 North West Employers 

North West Employers provide a large number of programmes throughout the 

year aimed at specific skill set for Councillors.  They have also developed an 

induction programme including three 90 minute videos which will be available 

in May/June 2021: 

 Session 1: You’ve been elected! Now what?  

 Session 2: Motions and Emotions 

Page 30



 Session 3: Developing as a Community Leader 

 

 

4.7 The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy 

The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) is a UK-

based international accountancy membership and standard-setting body who 

provide training in relation to audit, risk and governance. 

 

4.8 Centre for Governance and Public Scrutiny 

The Centre for Governance and Scrutiny (CfGS) provide training courses 

specifically for Overview and Scrutiny Committee  

5. Finance 

5.1 There is currently a £10k budget allocated for Member development. 

6. Legal 

6.1 Some functions undertaken by Councillors require statutory training including 

planning, licensing and foster panels 

7. Human Resource  

7.1 There are no direct implications for Human Resources. 

8. Equality Impact 

8.1 There are no direct implications for equality. 

9. Other considerations (Equalities, Corporate priorities, Risks) 

9.1 There are no direct further considerations. 

 

Page 31



APPENDIX 1 

Councillor mandatory online courses 

Course When 

Acceptable Use of ICT and Information 
Policy (AUP) 

Once per elected term 

Basic Introduction to Safeguarding 
Children (BISC) - Rochdale BC Content 

Once per elected term 

Code of Conduct Annually for all Members 

Corporate Safety Policy and 
Acceptance 

Once per elected term 

General Data Protection Regulation  Once per elected term 

Cyber Security and Data Handling   Once per elected term 

Invacuation Process Number One 
Riverside 

Once per elected term 

Safeguarding Adults - Rochdale 
Content 

Once per elected term 

Safeguarding Against Radicalisation - 
The Prevent Duty 

Once per elected term 

Social Media Policy  Once per elected term 

Modern Slavery Once per elected term 

Local Government Finance Once per elected term 

 

Optional eLearning Courses 

Course 

Commissioning of services 

Planning 

Equality & Diversity 

Equality & Diversity 

Facilitation & conflict resolution 

Handling Complaints 

Influencing skills 

Community engagement 

Police & Crime Panels 

Scrutiny for Councillors 

Stress management 

Supporting constituents 

Effective Ward Councillors 

Licensing & Regulation 

Star Procurement 

Age Discrimination 

 

 

 

 

Page 32



 

Annual Role Specific Mandatory Courses 

Course How When 

Adoption Panel In person Before being able to sit 
on a Panel 

Licensing In person, virtual, online. Before being able to sit 
on a Licensing Hearing 

Planning In person, virtual, online. Before being able to take 
part of the Planning 
Committee. 
 
Ongoing sessions 
throughout the municipal 
year of approx. 6 
sessions including 
external training 

Audit & Governance In person, virtual, online Within the first 3 months 
of appointment to 
Committee. 
 
Ongoing sessions as 
required including options 
for external training.  

 

Role Specific Non Mandatory Courses 

Overview and Scrutiny  External training available from Centre 
for Public Scrutiny 

 

Page 33



APPENDIX 2 

New Member Induction 2021 

Date Action Comment 

6-7 May Acceptance of Office 
and welcome pack 

Signing acceptance of office and 
provide  

7-10 May Collection of ICT 
equipment 

Arranged time and date 

12-19 May Directors meetings Half an hour virtual meetings with  

 Director, 

 Monitoring Officer, 

 Chief Finance Officer, 

 Dem Services, 

 Townships, 

 Payroll 

12 May – 30 June Mandatory Training  As detailed below 

12-19 May LGA training Enrol with LGA and Guidance for new 
Cllrs pack 

12-19 May NW Employers Enrol and distribute 3 x videos and 
supporting information 

19 May  Annual Council  

 

Councillor mandatory online courses 

Course When 

Acceptable Use of ICT and Information 
Policy (AUP) 

Once per elected term 

Basic Introduction to Safeguarding 
Children (BISC) - Rochdale BC Content 

Once per elected term 

Code of Conduct Annually for all Members 

Corporate Safety Policy and 
Acceptance 

Once per elected term  

General Data Protection Regulation  Once per elected term 

Cyber Security and Data Handling   Once per elected term 

Invacuation Process Number One 
Riverside 

Once per elected term 

Safeguarding Adults - Rochdale 
Content 

Once per elected term 

Safeguarding Against Radicalisation - 
The Prevent Duty 

Once per elected term 

Social Media Policy  Once per elected term 

 

 

Page 34


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	6 Public Health COVID-19 Grant Funding 20/21 & 21/22
	7 Member Development Programme 2021/22
	Meeting: Recruitment and Selection and Member Development
	1. Report Summary
	2. Recommendations
	3. Reason for Recommendation
	4. Key information
	5. Finance
	6. Legal
	7. Human Resource
	8. Equality Impact
	9. Other considerations (Equalities, Corporate priorities, Risks)
	Append. 1 for Member Development Programme 2021/22
	Append. 2 for Member Development Programme 2021/22


